Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny
Committee

Tuesday 30 July 2019 at 2.00 pm

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

ORGANISATION ITEMS
1

Apologies for absence

Stephen Bace

2

Declarations of Interest

Stephen Bace
SCRUTINY ITEMS

3

Gloucestershire Workforce (Pages 1 - 76)
The aim of the paper is to give an overview of the Gloucestershire
workforce across the Integrated Care System, identifying common issues
and challenges and the joined up approaches being taken to try resolve
them.
This item was first requested by Health and Care Scrutiny Committee prior
to the changes to committee remit and so the Chairs of the two committees
felt this was the right item for the first joint meeting of the committees.
Attached to this agenda is:




Summary presentation (this will be delivered at the meeting)
‘Data pack’ slides (for background reading ahead of the meeting)
Summary of Adult Social Care workforce 2017/18

Date Published: 22 July 2019

Membership – Cllr Phil Awford, Cllr Iain Dobie, Cllr Andrew Gravells, Cllr Terry Hale,
Cllr Stephen Hirst, Cllr Jeremy Hilton, Cllr Paul Hodgkinson, Cllr Carole Allaway Martin,
Cllr Brian Oosthuysen, Cllr Shaun Parsons, Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE, Cllr Steve Robinson,
Cllr Pam Tracey MBE, Cllr Robert Vines and Cllr Suzanne Williams, Cllr Collette Finnegan, Cllr
Martin Horwood, Cllr Steve Lydon, Cllr Helen Molyneux, Cllr Dilys Neill and Cllr Jill Smith,
Co-opted Members -

(a)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Please declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or
personal interests that you may have relating to specific matters which may be discussed
at this meeting, by signing the form that will be available in the Council Chamber.
Completing this list is acceptable as a declaration, but does not, of course, prevent
members from declaring an interest orally in relation to individual agenda items. The list
will be available for public inspection.
Members requiring advice or clarification about whether to make a declaration of interest
are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer (Jane Burns Tel: 01452 328472 /fax: 01452
425149 e-mail: jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b)

INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the
meeting, please contact:
Stephen Bace, Lead Democratic Services Adviser
:01452 324204/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1
Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see p88 of the
Constitution).
2.
Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions. Please
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 324203) to make the necessary
arrangements ahead of the meeting. If you are a member of the public and do not
wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on
duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point. Please remain there and await further
instructions.

Gloucestershire Workforce
– summary presentation
Page 1

Agenda Item 3

Joint meeting:
Health Scrutiny and Adult Social Care and
Communities Scrutiny
30 July 2019

#glosSTP

One Gloucestershire Health & Care

•

•
Page 2

•

Paid adult social care
workforce is similar in
size to the healthcare
workforce
The Volunteer
workforce is similar in
size to the total paid
workforce
Unpaid social care and
support is more than
50% of total care
available in
Gloucestershire.

#glosSTP2

Page 3

Risks and Challenges

#glosSTP3

3 Top Workforce Themes and Risks
Top 3 workforce risks

Page 4

The key risks are as follows:
•
Supply and Capacity
•
Recruitment and Retention
•
Leadership and Succession planning
There is a clear read across between these areas of
risk and the current programme workstreams.
However there is no one solution, no “magic bullet”
that will address any of these workforce challenges –
rather there are a number of initiatives and activities
which together move us towards our desired
position
Review of activity across One Gloucestershire to
address these risks:
•
Recruitment & retention initiatives
•
Staff training and development
•
Leadership development

Recruitment & Retention
•
•

•
•

developing new routes of supply – University of
Gloucestershire
grow-your-own
o apprenticeships
o succession planning
“Proud to Care”
joint careers activity

Training & Development
Upskilling our current staff to ensure they are skilled
to deliver the services our population needs
Development of new roles improves opportunities
for skill mix and most effective use of staff and their
skills;
Integration – a cultural change leading to more
effective use of staff and skills

Leadership
•
•

ICS wide Leadership programme
Adult Social Care Leadership & Management
Development Pathway

#glosSTP4

Collaboration and Partnership working
The ICS works collaboratively through the Local Workforce
Action Board (LWAB) to determine shared risks and then
identify actions and interventions which address these risks
across the ICS.

•

Many actions to mitigate workforce risks remain with the
employer, but ICS wide programmes are also identified which
support individual providers and provide greater opportunities
for efficiency; shared risk; shared learning and shared
resources.

Page 5

•

•

Governance determining how development funds available to
the ICS are deployed is in place and criteria aligned with the
ICS Executive Board priorities.

•

Activity within and across the ICS addressing known risks and
challenges are detailed on the following slides

“Working in
partnership across the
system has meant
we’ve been able to
agree a training
passport & common
approach to DBS
checks for providers,
making things more
efficient for new staff
& their managers.”
Neil Savage, Joint
Director of HR & OD
2gether & GCS)

#glosSTP5

Page 6

Recruitment & Retention Initiatives

#glosSTP6

Recruitment & Retention Initiatives (1)
Supply:
Additional supply route developed with the
University of Gloucestershire:
•
•
•
•
•
Page 7

General Nursing degree – 60 graduates by 2020
Mental Health Nursing – 30 graduates by 2021
Paramedic programme – 30 commenced 2019
Physiotherapy – 30 to commence 2019
30 registered Nursing Associates now in post
with 41 to complete training in 2020 and a
further 42 to commence both in September and
April

Apprenticeships:
•

•
•

Succession Planning:
•

GHT’s Accelerated Development Pool
enables those who are deemed overall
‘exceeding expectations’ to be considered
for entry into a year-long talent pool
where they receive and access tailored
development and support to help them
grow in their career. The Scheme is being
considered by other ICS partners now.

•

NHS High potential scheme supporting
leaders with potential

Joint procurement for Level 3 & 5 Management,
Level 5 Assistant Practitioner, Level 4 Data
Analyst (rotational apprenticeship) and Level 2
& 3 Health Care Assistant apprenticeships.
Social Work apprenticeships – 4 per year
Development of an ICS Apprenticeship Hub for
2019 – maximise opportunities for provisions
across all Trusts and Partners

#glosSTP7

Recruitment & Retention Initiatives (2)
NHS Employer retention schemes:

NHS Employer retention schemes:

For medical staff:

For scientific, therapeutic and technical staff

•

Retire and return policies/ Pension recycle
policy/flexible retirement scheme

•

Introduction of integrated team structures
to share expertise

•

Pilot of Locum’s Nest / growth of Internal
medical bank

•

Development of AHP rotational posts to
increase attractiveness of posts

•

Scope ‘generic’ AHP roles in the
community to improve skill mix and
sharing of expertise

•

Alternative professional roles

•

“Grow-your-Own” initiatives eg:
Audiology and Radiology

For nursing staff:
Page 8

•

Career pathway developments (nurse 10
year career plan)

•

‘Keep Me’ and Itchy feet conversations
(pre-exit conversations)

•

Nurse Rotation scheme

•

Introduction of Chief Nurse Fellows –
across band 5/6 roles including Nurses,
Midwives, AHP, Pharmacists etc

#glosSTP8

Recruitment & Retention Initiatives (3)
NHS Employer Recruitment schemes

Page 9

National shortages of Band 5 nurses impact in
Gloucestershire as elsewhere. Across the ICS there
are vacancies across acute, district and community
nursing teams.
Various recruitment initiatives are underway or
planned. These include:
•
Overseas recruitment (non-EU) - including
Australia and Philippines initiatives
•
Refer a friend scheme
•
Social media campaigns eg: for community
nursing – film etc
•
RMN Nurse Training Sponsorships & Guaranteed
job on completion of training
•
RMN Student Nurse Practitioner Options

Gloucestershire's Adult Social Care Recruitment &
Retention Initiative aiming to raise profiles of careers
in care.

Primary Care:
•

ICS Wide:
Shared attendance at recruitment days/events
Two ICS providers part of the NHSI retention
programme and Department of Health flexible
working project.
ICS supporting RePAIR – a national scheme aimed at
reducing attrition for local HEI students

•

Primary Care Retention Schemes: Next
Generation GP; Health Inequalities Fellowships
(recognised as regional champion for the NHS
Parliamentary awards 2019);
education/leadership/clinical development
Fellowship posts; GP Career Lead Role.
Primary Care Recruitment schemes:
International GP recruitment and local jobs fair;
newly Qualified GP scheme; “Be a GP in
Gloucestershire” campaign.

#glosSTP9

Page 10

Training & Development

#glosSTP
10

Training & Development (1)
Closing Skills Gaps – upskilling current
staff:
A number of upskilling programmes have been
supported by the ICS in the last few years:
•
•
Page 11

•

•
•
•

Upskilling of key groups to “Strengthen Mental
Health Care and Support”
Fundamentals of Care programme delivered
through the “Proud to Learn” platform
Clinical skills Awareness for Mental Health Staff
– parity of care
Perinatal Mental Health workforce
transformation
Supporting “Better Births”
Supporting skills development across a number
of Clinical Pathways including: Young onset
dementia; Respiratory clinical pathway; End of
Life Care; Falls and Rehab; Falls prevention;
Cancer Pathway; Circulatory clinical pathway
(CVD and Hypertension); Stroke; Diabetes
(Adults with a learning disability)

The Council’s long standing, well regarded
multi-agency workforce development
strategies was re-branded under the ‘Proud to
Learn’ umbrella
Multi-agency training strategies:
• Dementia
• Safeguarding
• MCA & DoLs
• Autism
• Mental Health Crisis Care
E-learning and face to face training hosted on
LearnPro

#glosSTP
11

Training & Development (2)

Page 12

Developing New Roles

Supporting Primary Care capacity:

A number of new roles have been developed across
the ICS – to increase capacity; improve skills mix;
deliver services in new ways releasing time to care.
Supporting medical capacity:
Development and implementation of the Advanced
Clinical Practitioners; Physician Associates and
consideration being given to the Associate Specialist
role.
Supporting nursing capacity and Adult Social Care:
•
Development and implementation of the
registered Nursing Associate role supporting
skill mix development in health care.
•
Nursing Associates will also help bridge a gap
between Social Care support workers and
Registered Nurses – pilot in place.
•
Care Navigator
Integration
•
Integration across the ICS supported by the use
of the people framework- current example:
Respiratory services.
•
Development of an ICS wide workforce planning
approach to support development of a 5 year
workforce plan

All GP practices in Gloucestershire are now part of a
Primary Care network (PCN), and there will be
ongoing increases in these new roles. Projections for
Gloucestershire indicate there will be approximately
an additional 200 staff working in primary care
settings by March 2024

New roles introduced into primary care over the last
few years, increasing capacity in the primary care
setting. These have included:
•
Clinical pharmacists
•
Paramedics
•
Advanced Physiotherapists
•
Community Matrons/ Frailty Matrons
•
Advanced Mental Health Practitioners
•
Community dementia Nurse (pilot)

•

The new role of General Practice Assistant (GPA)
is being introduced across the country. GPAs will
be trained to do a variety of tasks that will
relieve the GP from some of the less complex
aspects of consultations, and help them work
more efficiently.

#glosSTP
12

Training & Development (3)
Adult Social Care Three Tiers

Staff Health and Wellbeing

•
•

•

•
•
•

3x Pilot sites:
Enabled conversations / achieved the best
outcomes for people
Reduce waiting times
Low re-referral rate
Phased roll-out

•
•

develop a One Gloucestershire approach to health
and wellbeing
Gloucestershire Health & Wellbeing webpage - GloW
Workplace Wellbeing Charter

Diversity

Page 13

ICS employers are committed to ensuring that everyone
regardless of their ability or disability have the same
opportunities to access meaningful occupation.
Employers are either “Disability Confident” Employers or
Leaders .

#glosSTP
13

Page 14

Leadership

#glosSTP
14

Leadership (1)
ICS Wide Leadership programme:
•

•
Page 15

•

2018 – co-produced and delivered an ICS
system leadership development
programme and on line toolkit for 48
leaders (2 cohorts of 24 leaders) from
GCS, GHFT, CCG and 2gether
Aimed at leaders working at a strategic
level, informing and developing service
improvement across the system
Programme was built on 5 elements of
collaborative leadership and reflects NHS
leadership academy guidance and leading
approaches to system leadership

•

•

Multi-agency / multi-disciplinary cohorts:
all NHS organisations; Gloucestershire
County Council; GCC external nominations
(Care Homes etc); Police; Public Health;
Southwest Ambulance NHS Trust
Each cohort with a different focus: Urgent
Care; Dementia & Frailty; CVD & Diabetes;
Respiratory & End of Life Care

Currently up to Cohort 6 with more cohorts
(92 attendees) planned for this year.
Alumni from previous cohorts supporting ICS
wide projects and initiatives.
“Excellent programme, elements, toolkits
and networking. Time to develop
relationships and trust”
“We knew everything was on the Toolkit,
and would recommend to other
colleagues across the ICS”

#glosSTP
15

Leadership (2)
Adult Social Care Leadership & Management Development Pathway
Available to providers in the external ASC sector and to GCC managers of CQC registered services, this
pathway supports the development of future and current managers.

Page 16

Every adult care service
registered with the Care
Quality Commission (CQC)
regulator must have its own
registered manager. They
have overall statutory
responsibility for making sure
care standards are met and
that there are enough skilled
staff recruited and trained to
deliver quality care. In
Gloucestershire there are 356
CQC Regulated
establishments.

#glosSTP
16

Gloucestershire Workforce
- data pack
Page 17

Joint meeting:
Health Scrutiny and Adult Social Care and
Communities Scrutiny
30 July 2019

#glosSTP

Contents:

Page 18

No

Title

No

Title

Slide 3
Slide 4
Slide 5
Slide 6
Slide 7
Slide 8
Slide 10
Slide 12
Slide 15
Slide 16
Slide 17
Slide 18
Slide 19
Slide 20
Slide 21
Slide 24
Slide 25

Overview of Gloucestershire
Gloucestershire Context
Gloucestershire population age profile
Gloucestershire population change
One Gloucestershire Health & Care
One Gloucestershire - Integrated Care System
Adult Social Care Workforce
Health Care Workforce
Workforce Risks and Challenges
Identification of Gaps
Workforce Supply Risks and Workforce Challenges
ICS - Collaboration, Actions and Plans
Collaboration and Partnership working
Actions and Plans: content
Closing the Skills Gaps - Upskilling Currrent Staff
Closing the Skills Gaps - Proud to Learn
Supply - Recruitment & Retention

Slide 29
Slide 31
Slide 32
Slide 33
Slide 35
Slide 36
Slide 39
Slide 42
Slide 45
Slide 47
Slide 50
Slide 54

Supply - University of Gloucestershire
Supply - Grow-your-Own: Apprenticeships
Supply - Grow-your-Own: Succession Planning
Supply - Proud to Care Gloucestershire
Supply - Joint Careers Activity
New Roles
New Ways of Working: Integration
New Ways of Working: Adult Social Care
Leadership
NHS - Long Term Plan
ICS – Key deliverables 2018 to 2020
NHS - Interim People Plan

#glosSTP2

Page 19

Overview of Gloucestershire

#glosSTP3

Gloucestershire Context

Page 20

• 18-64 population
expected to remain
static overall
• Very slight bias to
females aged 16-64
at 50.5% (all ages =
51%)
• Net loss (up to 400)
19-25s leave each
year
• Concept of working
age is shifting
• Trend to single
person households

#glosSTP4

Gloucestershire Population age profile

Page 21
Source: ONS Population projections 2016

• This graph shows how the age
profile in Gloucestershire is set to
change over the next 5 to 10 years.
• There are some age groups with
reducing numbers and though we
can see an increase in the 15-19
age group, we are also still
experiencing a loss of our 19-25
year olds from the county.
• In order to continue to serve our
population with the best care, we
need to consider how we might
attract and retain people in health
and care services:
 How we make careers in
our service attractive to
our younger population
 How we retain experience
and skills of our older staff.

#glosSTP5

Gloucestershire Population change
•

•

Page 22

•

Over the next 5 to 10 years the
labour force age projected to
show the largest growth is the 6070 age group.
This combined with the changing
in state pensions age (particularly
for women) will mean that overall
our labour force will have an
older age prolife.
As significant employers in the
county we cannot afford to be
complaisant about this section of
our staff and we will need to
ensure that we can retain these
older, more experienced staff
members in a way that is both
productive and beneficial for both
staff member and employer.

Source: ONS Population projections 2016

#glosSTP6

One Gloucestershire Health & Care

•

•
Page 23

•

Paid adult social care
workforce is similar in
size to the healthcare
workforce
The Volunteer
workforce is similar in
size to the total paid
workforce
Unpaid social care and
support is more than
50% of total care
available in
Gloucestershire.

#glosSTP7

Page 24

One Gloucestershire - Integrated Care System
One Gloucestershire is made up of seven partners:
Gloucestershire County Council
Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
2gether NHS Foundation Trust
NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group
Gloucestershire primary care providers
South West Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust

#glosSTP8

Page 25

#glosSTP9

Adult Social Care Workforce

Page 26

#glosSTP
10

Adult Social Care Workforce
•

•

Page 27

•

•
•
•
•

Estimated 17,500 jobs in
Gloucestershire - split across –
local authorities (6%);
independent sector (88%) and
direct payment recipients (5%)
34% turnover on average for ASC
roles in Gloucestershire with
turnover in Domiciliary Care
Services higher at 48.3 %
64% of people starting new roles
are recruited from within the
sector (high churn within the
sector) so the sector does retain
experience and skills.
The sector has a 7.8% vacancy rate
Lowest number of Zero-hours contracts in South West
80% of the workforce is female
Average age is 42, higher for regulated professionals at 48
Source 2018 NMDS-sc – taken from 2017/2018 data inputs

#glosSTP
11

Health Care Workforce

Page 28

#glosSTP
12

Health Care Workforce (2)
Staff Group

Page 29

Add Prof Scientific and Technic
Additional Clinical Services
Administrative and Clerical
Allied Health Professionals
Estates and Ancillary
Healthcare Scientists
Medical and Dental*
Nursing and Midwifery Registered
Grand Total

wte

hc

%

480
575
2040 2450
2520 2985
815
980
635
845
245
270
945 1035
3350 3965
11030 13105

83.5
83.3
84.4
83.2
75.1
90.7
91.3
84.5
84.5

Wte: = whole time equivalent where 1 wte = 37.5 hours/week
HC = headcount
% = participation rate (wte as % of hc) for instance working 4
days / week is a 0.8 contract and 80% participation

• Add. Prof. Scientific and Tech: Pharmacists; Dental
Nurses; Clinical psychologists etc.
• Additional Clinical Service: All clinical support staff –
Healthcare assistants; Physio assistants etc.
• Allied Health professionals: Therapy staff including
Radiographers
• Healthcare Scientists: Physiologists; Medical physics;
Blood sciences; Vascular sciences etc.
Source: NHS Digital ESR data Jan 2019
* Adjusted for hosted GP registrars

#glosSTP
13

Health Care Workforce (3)
South West Ambulance NHS
Foundation Trust

Page 30

• Approximately 4000 wte staff in total
• Gloucestershire accounts for
approximately 9% of the clinical
workforce
• This means there about 173 wte
paramedics and 98 wte emergency
care assistants in Gloucestershire

Primary Care Services
• 81 GP practices ~ 14 Primary Care
Networks ~ 6 Integrated Locality
Partnership (ILPs)
• Increased numbers of GPs achieved
• 2nd highest number of GPs per patient
(1:1413) in region (only the major
conurbation in Bristol is higher at 1:1358)

wte
GPs
Nurses
Other Direct
Patient Care

Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-22 Mar-24
375
205

416
213

437
213

448
213

167

210

319

412

#glosSTP
14

Page 31

Workforce Risks and Challenges

#glosSTP
15

Identification of Gaps
Some of the key risks are as follows;
•
•
•

•

Recruitment and retention is a risk for all
Leadership and succession planning
Providers make the link between poor staff experience and the quality of patient experience particularly around
retention of experienced staff.
There are a number of more specific risks around challenging recruitment positions in particular staff groups
including scientific and technical staff groups.

Page 32

There is a clear read across between these areas of risk and the current programme workstreams.

•

•

•

Vacancies (long term and turnover); hard to recruit to posts and national shortages all contribute to known staffing
issues across the ICS which need to be addressed.
Supply of newly qualified staff is more difficult to predict now that Health Education England (HEE) no longer
commission non-medical undergraduate programmes. The loss of NHS bursaries has had a significant impact on
application levels and whilst applications are still in excess of places available, it has had a more significant effect
on those professions which have traditionally attracted a more mature student – such as Mental Health Nursing.
EU exit may have a significant impact on Gloucestershire. Although numbers of staff from the EU may be relatively
small across the NHS in Gloucestershire (less than 4%), It is recognised that there are some services/teams with a
higher concentration which may be impacted. Impact assessments have been made. However of greater note for
the ICS is the relatively high percentage of EU staff in Care services (approximately 12%)

#glosSTP
16

Workforce Supply Risks

Workforce Challenges

•

•

•

Page 33

•

•
•
•
•

supply of Paramedics – wider use of
paramedics across the system
supply of Registered Nurses, and
particularly Learning Disability Nurses
after 2021 - removal of the NHS
bursary has impacted most on those
professions which have traditionally
attracted a more mature student
medical capacity as demand for services
continues to increase and the
population becomes older with more
complex co-morbidities
supply of Therapists and Radiographers
IAPT shortages
Supply of experienced Social Workers
impact of EU exit –
unknown as yet

•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

collaborative and partnership working
across the Integrated Care System
making most effective use of current
staff and improving skills
recruitment and retention
leadership and succession planning
staff health and wellbeing
improving opportunities for further skill
mix - eg: apprenticeships and
implementation of new roles
system support for developments in
Primary Care
making sure working in Gloucestershire
is attractive
ensuring we are prepared for changes in
the labour force – shifting concept of
working age

#glosSTP
17

Page 34

ICS – Collaboration, Actions and Plans

#glosSTP
18

Collaboration and Partnership working
•

•

Page 35

•

•

The ICS works collaboratively to determine shared risks
and then identifies actions and interventions which
address these risks across the ICS.
Many actions to mitigate workforce risks remain with the
employer, but ICS wide programmes are also identified
which support individual providers and provide greater
opportunities for efficiency; shared risk; shared learning
and shared resources.
Governance determining how development funds
available to the ICS are deployed is in place and criteria
aligned with the ICS Executive Board priorities.
Activity within and across the ICS addressing known risks
and challenges are detailed on the following slides

“Working in
partnership across the
system has meant
we’ve been able to
agree a training
passport & common
approach to DBS
checks for providers,
making things more
efficient for new staff
& their managers.”
Neil Savage, Joint
Director of HR & OD
2gether & GCS)

#glosSTP
19

Actions and Plans: Content
Closing the skills gaps

New Roles

Upskilling our current staff to ensure they are
skilled to deliver the services our population
needs

•

Development of new roles improves
opportunities for skill mix and most effective
use of staff and their skills;

Supply

Page 36

Supply includes new and newly qualified staff
entering health and care; retaining staff and
developing staff to move through the system to
areas of need.
• recruitment & retention
• developing new routes of supply –
University of Gloucestershire
• grow-your-own
o apprenticeships
o succession planning
• “Proud to Care”
• joint careers activity

•

in Primary Care – the Primary Care networks
(PCNs) introduced in the Long Term Plan sets
out “the biggest reform to GP services in 15
years” (Health Service Journal)
supporting increased capacity and skill mix
o Roles supporting medical capacity –
Advanced Clinical Practitioners;
Physicians Associates; Associate
Specialists
o Nursing Associates
o General Practice Assistants
o Glos Assistants

New Ways of Working
Integration – a cultural change leading to more
effective use of staff and skills
•

People Framework

Leadership
•
•

ICS wide Leadership programme
Adult Social Care Leadership & Management
Development Pathway

#glosSTP
20

Closing Skills Gaps (1) – Upskilling Current Staff

Page 37

Investments made during 2017-19 to support
the One Gloucestershire challenge to
“Strengthen Mental Health Care and Support”
by up-skilling key groups of the ICS workforce.
• 159 police
• 56 ambulance
• 221 Gloucestershire multi-agency
• 15 Fire & rescue
• 119 Homeless/Housing workers
• 8 professional standards and anticorruption
The training was well evaluated by all agencies

Investment during 2018-19 to develop, deliver
and evaluate a programme of Fundamentals of
Care training primarily for the community social
care workforce.

“I will be able to support colleagues and family
with greater understanding as well as clients”
“The training was useful on a personal and
professional level – having lived with family
members with depression most of my life it was
really good to have increased understanding”
“…excellent delivery of some difficult and thought
provoking content”

#glosSTP
21

Closing Skills Gaps (2) – Upskilling Current Staff
Investment during 2018/19 to develop,
deliver and evaluate a Clinical Skills
Awareness training programme for
mental health staff within 2gether NHS
Trust.
support staff to understand the Trusts aims,
to appreciate the harmful effects of smoking
on people’s lives and the sources of support
and help they can use and/or refer their
service users to

•

supporting staff with appropriate physical
health knowledge and skills

Page 38

•

–

one knowledge gap that had been identified
was the confidence of staff in administering
insulin. “Safe Use of Insulin” was used to
make staff aware of the most common errors,
and how to avoid them.

–

provide training in a range of interventions
designed to support staff in identifying and
support the physical healthcare of service
users: Injection Site training and use of ECG

The ‘Five Year Forward View for Mental
Health’ document outlined the urgent need
to “re-energise and improve mental health
care across the NHS to meet increased
demand and improve outcomes” and in
particular highlighted the need to treat
both mental health and physical health
needs with equal priority.

#glosSTP
22

Closing Skills Gaps (3) – Upskilling Current Staff

Page 39

In addition to the examples given, further investment during the last 3 years to support the
upskilling of staff across the system:
• Clinical Care Pathways support – aimed at
supporting skills required for transformation of
• Perinatal Mental Health workforce
services across One Gloucestershire including:
transformation – multi-agency
Young onset dementia; Respiratory clinical
training; share evidence based
pathway; End of Life Care; Falls and Rehab; Falls
practice between professionals and
prevention; Cancer Pathway; Circulatory clinical
organisations; helped inform planning
pathway (CVD and Hypertension); Stroke;
for the way the service works in the
Diabetes (Adults with a learning disability)
future.
•

Supporting “Better Births” new roles
and service transformation:
developing the education required to
support the introduction of Maternity
Support Workers (MSW) into the
community to work alongside
maternity and other children’s
services teams to deliver personalized
care plans and to support the
development of community hubs

Clinical Area

CVD & Hypertension
Cancer
Falls – risk of falls
End of Life
Development programme
Masterclasses
Programme for support workers
Diabetes (adult with LD)
Respiratory
Dementia
Stroke

Activity / number supported

235 in total - Practice Nurses;
Pharmacists; healthcare assistants; GPs
12 to date – ongoing into second year
108 in total to date – PLT events
Cohort 1: 20 - Cohort 2 planned Sept 19
Second year
Runs alongside – partnership 2G/GHFT
24 trained/ 4 training sessions – booked
to end of year
52 nurses/GPs begun training modules
45 trained - Dementia community nurses
and Alzheimer’s Society Community
educators
In progress

#glosSTP
23

Closing Skills Gaps (4) – Proud to Learn
•

•
Page 40

It was identified that to ensure staff
with the right skills and behaviours
were successfully retained, workforce
development was key.
This drove the decision to rebrand
the Council’s long standing, well
regarded multi-agency workforce
development strategies under the
‘Proud to Learn’ umbrella.

Multi-Agency Training Strategies
•
•
•
•
•

Dementia
Safeguarding
MCA & DoLs
Autism
Mental
Health Crisis
Care

E-learning and face to face training
hosted on LearnPro

#glosSTP
24

Supply (1) – Recruitment & Retention
An annual GP workforce survey takes place each September

Primary Care retention schemes:

Primary Care retention schemes:

•

•

•
Page 41

‘Next Generation GP’: Local delivery of
National Leadership Programme for Early
Career GPs
Health Inequalities post CCT Fellowships: 3
posts in Gloucestershire - innovative,
developmental portfolio roles (5
sessions/week, Inner City Gloucester + PG
cert in Public Health at UWE)

•

Health Education England post CCT
Fellowships: 3 posts in Gloucestershire –
focused on education/ leadership/ clinical
development
GP Career Lead role – supporting Primary
Care careers

The Health Inequalities Fellowship
has been recognised as a regional
champion for The NHS
Parliamentary Awards 2019 and
down to the final 8 nationally in
the Health Equalities Award
category.

#glosSTP
25

Supply (2) – Recruitment & Retention
Primary Care recruitment schemes:
•

Page 42

•

•

19th

International GP Recruitment - From the
to 21st of June Gloucestershire CCG supported
a regional International GP Recruitment event
which took place at Marsh Farm in
Swindon. The three day event enabled
engagement with four GP and their families
who also attended an official interview and
assessment on clinical skills session. The event
also hosted jobs fair for all regional GPs on
Friday the 21st of June where all
Gloucestershire vacancies and schemes were
promoted.
Newly Qualified GP scheme: supporting GPs
that trained in Gloucestershire to stay in
county and develop specialisms , anecdotally
improved retention of these newly qualified
GPs
Developed a successful recruitment campaign
with the British Medical Journal (BMJ) called
“Be a GP in Gloucestershire”. The campaign
included print, online and social media
content that highlighted the benefits of a
career in Gloucestershire, along with
recruitment packages for practices to call
upon.

NHS Employer schemes:
Programmes to retaining the current clinical
workforce are in progress. These include:
For medical staff:
• Retire and return policies/ Pension recycle
policy/flexible retirement scheme
• Pilot of Locum’s Nest / growth of Internal
medical bank
For nursing staff:
• Career pathway developments (nurse 10 year
career plan)
• ‘Keep Me’ and Itchy feet conversations (preexit conversations)
• Nurse Rotation scheme
• Introduction of Chief Nurse Fellows – across
band 5/6 roles including Nurses, Midwives,
AHP, Pharmacists etc
For scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
• Introduction of integrated team structures to
share expertise
• Development of AHP rotational posts to
increase attractiveness of posts
• Scope ‘generic’ AHP roles in the community to
improve skill mix and sharing of expertise
• Alternative professional roles
• “Grow-your-Own” initiatives eg: Audiology and
Radiology
#glosSTP
26

Supply (3) – Recruitment & Retention

Page 43

• Support activities valuing staff – staff awards,
national awards, radio interview with
different departments etc, meet an exec
sessions; regular sharing of good practice.
• Active in promoting working for the trust –
radio interviews; “Meet the Matron”;
promotion of staff benefits; staff-led videos
“Services in 60 Seconds”; Profile colleagues in
local, regional and national media.
• Return to Practice - nurse hosting and
opportunities
• Recruiting peripatetic HCA’s - vacancies and
reduce agency costs
• Rotational scheme for Occupational
Therapists

National shortages of Band 5 nurses impact in
Gloucestershire as elsewhere. Across the ICS
there are vacancies across acute, district and
community nursing teams.
Various recruitment initiatives are underway or
planned. These include:
• Overseas recruitment (non-EU) - including
Australia and Philippines initiatives
• Refer a friend scheme
• Social media campaigns eg: for community
nursing – film etc
• RMN Nurse Training Sponsorships &
Guaranteed job on completion of training
• RMN Student Nurse Practitioner Options

• Flexible “retire & return” packages
developed/ additional development of
flexible opportunities and new roles attractive
to staff due to retire

#glosSTP
27

Supply (4) – Recruitment & Retention
ICS wide activity:
•

Page 44

•
•

ICS members work together on shared
attendance at recruitment days and
other initiatives, though for 2019 we
intend to have a greater focus on
attracting people (including school
age) into careers in health and care –
scoping work is currently underway
and plans will be developed during
2019. There are already plans to look
at the introduction of new work
experience roles.
Work on streamlining recruitment and
on-boarding processes is shared
through the R&R subgroup.
The ICS has adopted a People
Framework aimed at supporting
employment of staff across integrated
services.

•

Two of the ICS providers are part of
the NHSI retention programme and
the Department of Health flexible
working project.

•

The ICS has funded a significant
leadership development programme
which is achieving good results –
improvement in leadership skills across
the ICS (all members all sectors) will
impact on retention and staff
satisfaction.

•

ICS supporting RePAIR locally. This is a
national nurse attrition project –
aimed at reducing attrition for local
HEI Nurse students.

#glosSTP
28

Supply (5) - University of
Gloucestershire
Additional supply to Gloucestershire
•

•
Page 45

•

•

The first cohort of general nursing degree students are soon
to start their 3rd year of study. There are 60 students who will
qualify in the summer of 2020.
The 30 students undertaking the mental health nursing
degree will be starting their 2nd year in September.
– It is anticipated that the undergraduate nursing
programmes will have filled all their student places for
this September.
– The Mental Health programme was oversubscribed so
the numbers have been increased from 30 to 40
students for this September.
30 Paramedic students commenced training in January and
we are exploring with the university the feasibility of an
additional intake this year.
The University has had approval to run an undergraduate
degree in Physiotherapy and 30 students will commence on
this programme in September.

“It has enabled me be to be a
reflective thinker, making me use my
emotional intelligence. Meeting other
people's needs gives me the ability to
think deep and work with people…for
their needs not what I may think they
need. Helping people has always
been my life long desire and being in
this course has armed me for the
purpose.”
“It is inspiring to keep applying best
practice to patient care and at the
same time humbling and grounding to
witness people in difficult times in
their lives entrusting you to lend a
helping hand.”

#glosSTP
29

Supply (6) - University of
Gloucestershire
•

Page 46

•

The first Registered Nursing Associates qualified in
May with 30 new RNAs now working on wards and
in community settings across the 3 trusts.
– All providers including care homes and GPs
foresee a significant demand for RNAs in the
future.
– 41 Trainee Nursing Associates are starting their
second year with further intakes each of 42
students planned to start in September and
April.
To provide the increasing number of clinical
pharmacists required in primary care, University of
the West of England (UWE) are continuing to
provide the training in non-medical prescribing. A
similar course will be commencing at University of
Gloucestershire to manage the additional demand
for this training from Pharmacists, Paramedics,
Physiotherapists and Nurses.

“The Registered Nursing Associates are
already making a difference to patient care
and multi-disciplinary team working since
joining our teams and the NMC
professional body in May. We need more of
them!”
Susan Field
Director of Nursing
Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust

#glosSTP
30

Supply (7) Grow-your-Own: Apprenticeships
2019 Plan: ICS Apprenticeship Hub

Page 47

Development of an ICS Apprenticeship “hub”
ensuring a more coordinated and streamlined
approach to apprenticeship provision for all 5
health and social care organisations. The aim
will be to maximize the opportunities for
apprenticeship provision and ensure the
apprenticeship levy is maximized in the County
across all Trusts and Partners - thereby
supporting a more sustainable workforce to
grow our own professional teams. The work
involved in developing each new
apprenticeship and standard is significant, and
as each organisation does this for themselves,
there is duplication of effort, less capacity for
innovation, smaller numbers of apprenticeships
taken up and a potential underspend of levies.
Introducing a Hub will allow for more
collaboration and development countywide.
Social Work Apprenticeships
Starting in 2020, we aim to have 4 Apprentices
each year in GCC. These will initially be sourced
from our current non qualified but experienced
Social Care Assessor staff, providing them with
the opportunity for professional career
development, and the council with a group of
employees who are firmly based in
Gloucestershire for family reasons and are more
likely to remain once qualified.

Assistant Practitioner apprentice Meg Cooke
Meg started with Gloucestershire Care Services as a Level 2 Apprentice Health
Care Assistant and then secured a substantive post as a Podiatry Assistant.
‘I chose this apprenticeship because I feel as though it will get me that one step
closer to where I would like to be in my career. I am far off, however this
apprenticeship has given me the chance to show my skills and to help me to the
top of the banding which is what I want to achieve within the next few years. I
believe it can also improve my skills and knowledge. It is a big test and will be a
very big achievement when I get to the end. I am very fortunate to have this
opportunity’.

Joint procurement for Apprenticeships has been a learning curve for the
Trusts involved. At present the ICS partners work to jointly procure
training providers for Level 3 & 5 Management, Level 5 Assistant
Practitioner, Level 4 Data Analyst (rotational apprenticeship) and Level 2
& 3 Health Care Assistant apprenticeships.

Jayne Robinson – Occupational Therapy Departmental Manager – 2gether
NHS Foundation Trust
It has been a really useful addition to the Therapy department having this
brand new position, which covers Occupational Therapy, Physiotherapy and
Health & Exercise practitioners. It feels empowering having the AP in the team,
who is learning about the unique skills of each profession – this is helping to
make the team more cohesive. Plus we know that we are investing in, and
growing, a Band 4 for the future who can stay within the team.
“It is feeling very positive currently and we believe we made the right decision
to create this new post – Dave is an excellent recruit!”

#glosSTP
31

Supply (8) Grow-your-own: Succession Planning
NHS Employers schemes
GHT’s Accelerated Development Pool enables
those who are deemed overall ‘exceeding
expectations’ to be considered for entry into a
year-long talent pool where they receive and
access tailored development and support to help
them grow in their career. Open to anyone who
demonstrates:
o
Page 48

o
o

the values and behaviours expected within our
organisation
with the potential, ability, readiness and drive in
your day-to-day work.
those who demonstrate a strong commitment
to their own personal development, and show
willingness to possibly move into different
departments/areas to maximise opportunities
for developing their career. This may
consequently include being based on another
site in the Trust.

Everyone who is accepted into the pool will
receive a tailored package of recommended
development opportunities. This will be
designed by the OD and Education teams,
consulting with professional/technical experts.
The Scheme is being considered by other ICS
partners now.

ICS Wide:
NHS High potential scheme
The NHS Leadership Academy (the Academy) is
working in partnership with One Gloucestershire
and other testing sites across England to codesign and introduce an NHS High Potential
Scheme.
A High Potential Scheme will support leaders
with potential to:







Progress into more senior roles within the NHS at a
faster pace
Gain cross-sector experience, building the
foundations of a successful leadership career in the
health and social care sector
Provide the NHS with outstanding leadership for
the future
Utilise their high potential to lead improved
patient care
Harness skills to create more inclusive cultures in
the wider system

#glosSTP
32

Supply (9) – Proud to Care Gloucestershire
Outcomes Summary
•

•
Page 49

•

•

•

Established in 2017 as a result of the
regional Proud to Care South West
Partnership
Gloucestershire's Adult Social Care
Recruitment & Retention Initiative
aiming to raise profiles of careers in
care
Encourage different types of people
to consider care work
Support the recruitment of Personal
Assistants through Gloucestershire’s
PA Register – Glos Assistants
Work to support the National DHSC
campaign locally

•
•
•
•
•
•

132 Providers Registered to post
vacancies
750 vacancies posted by 80 providers
in 2019/2019
On average vacancies receive 8 views
by 4 different users
67 Care Ambassadors registered
On average over 4000 page views a
month by over 800 users
40% of users come to the website
from social media platforms

#glosSTP
33

Raise the profile of
careers in care.

Support care
providers to
recruit new staff.
Page 50

Case Studies to
showcase
different roles
Run a Jobs portal
for ASC Roles

Engage with
education providers
Run a care
ambassadors network

Encourage
different types of
people to work in
care.
Promote Values
Based
Recruitment.
Ensure new staff
are well trained
and looked after.
Work with Job Centres
and National Careers
Service

#glosSTP
34

Supply (10) – Joint Careers activity
ICS Employers:

Plan for 2019

•

Having reviewed current activity, the aim
is to scope the opportunities and
benefits from ICS wide collaboration and
co-ordinated, targeted activity focussed
on getting a better outcome for One
Gloucestershire.
How best “Proud to Care”, NHS activity,
NHS Jobs and “One Gloucestershire” can
be used together will need to be
considered.

•

All Trusts have work programmes for
recruitment events and “Careers” days,
with some events being done in
partnership – but activity is not fully coordinated
Examples include:
o

Page 51

o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Work Experience taster days / work
experience weeks
Careers events held at local schools and
colleges
Hosting Healthcare Science week
Stands for National Apprenticeship week
Partnering with local schools
Careers fairs with secondary schools; Careers
talks to year 9+; “speed dating” sessions
Mock interview sessions
Proud to Care - strong links with local schools
and higher education providers – assemblies;
ask the professional; classroom talks. Activity
tailored to the younger audience plus an
emphasis on developing a career in Adult
Social Care

#glosSTP
35

New Roles (1)
Primary Care

Primary Care

Increased numbers of new roles planned:

All GP practices in Gloucestershire are now
part of Primary Care Networks. Network
funding will be via a Direct Enhanced Service,
a contractual arrangement from NHSE which
went live on 1 July 2019.
• In 2019/20 Networks will receive:

o

o

Page 52
o

Clinical Pharmacists; Paramedics (in the joint
Paramedic urgent visiting service) and
Advanced Physiotherapists: numbers will
increase as part of the GP 2019 contract
change
Community Matrons/Frailty Matrons: 8 in
post with no current increase planned –
however there has been the implementation
of the Complex Care at Home team in the
Glos, Chelt, Forest of Dean – funded by Glos
County Council social care, using health and
social care based staff to tackle frailty from
an early intervention perspective.
Advanced Mental Health Practitioners pilot
(3 staff) will increase to 8 if workforce is
available. Community dementia nurses pilot
(5) based in primary care.
The Advanced Physiotherapist Practitioner Service in
Primary Care delivered in partnership with GP
practices and Gloucestershire Care Services, has
been nationally recognised as best practice - in the
final three for the Health+Care ‘Innovation in Primary
Care’ Category 2019.

o
o

•

100% recurrent funding to employ social
prescribers
70% funding for clinical pharmacists

In future years they will receive 70%
funding for physiotherapists and physician
associates (from 2020/21) and paramedics
(from 2021/22) as they are introduced

Projections for Gloucestershire indicate
there will be approximately an additional
200 staff working in primary care settings
by March 2024

#glosSTP
36

New Roles (2)
New Roles supporting medical
capacity

Nursing Associates in Adult Social
Care

•

•

•
Page 53

•

•

A development programme has been in
place for two years supporting the
development of Advanced Clinical
Practitioners (ACP)
A review of staff to provide an ACP
pipeline for future development has
been undertaken and we will continue
with the development programme.
Trusts have taken the opportunities
provided for the development of
Physician Associates (PAs) and these
roles are starting to be implemented
where required. Care is being taken to
ensure these new roles are embedded
into the current workforce.
The Associate Specialist role is also
under consideration as is a further
review of SAS roles and the scope for
these roles in future medical skill mix.

•

•

Nursing Associates will help bridge a
gap between Social Care support
workers and Registered Nurses
They will help to improve outcomes
and experiences for people who use
ASC services by providing support for
people with health needs
Pilot the role in Nursing Homes in
2019/2020 to inform roll out to
community settings in future

#glosSTP
37

New Roles (3)
General Practice Assistants
•

Page 54

•

•

The new role of General Practice
Assistant (GPA) is being introduced
across the country. GPAs will be
trained to do a variety of tasks that
will relieve the GP from some of the
less complex aspects of
consultations, and help them work
more efficiently.

This new role acts as a support to
General Practitioners within the
practice setting, and has been
described as a cross between a
Health Care Assistant and a
Receptionist.
It is expected that training will take 6
months - providing an opportunity
for practice staff to develop their role
and undertake accredited training.

Glos Assistants
•

•
•
•
•

Glos Assistants; Gloucestershire’s Help,
Care & Support Noticeboard (Register of
employed and volunteer Assistants) is a
‘one-stop-shop’ for individuals within
Gloucestershire seeking or offering
assistance.
Launched in October 2018
Inclusion Glos promote best practice &
encourage use
PTC moderate & update website
Includes:
o
o
o
o

adverts from individuals who are looking for
assistance
profiles of people wanting to offer assistance
advice and guidance for all parties receiving or
giving that assistance
a singular place of access for all using the site
to have best practice guidance on safe
recruitment and where to access further
support if needed

#glosSTP
38

New Ways of Working (1): Integration – a cultural
change
“From a Respiratory Project perspective we have utilised
the framework to introduce an integrated Respiratory
lead role to the system… This has allowed effective
working across the different respiratory teams,
supporting change delivery at an implementation
phase.”

A focus on contractual, logistic and
administrative developments that will
enable staff to move across
organisational boundaries
•
Page 55

Development of a Skills Passport framework
to streamline processes and reduce workload
– shared manual process initially with
Statutory and Mandatory training aligned to
the Core Skills framework

Kelly Matthews
Deputy Director Transformation & Service Redesign
NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group

•

Integration across the ICS supported by the
use of the people framework- current
example: Respiratory services
“I would like to think my experience would be valuable
in moving forward with the framework to enable more
seamless system-wide working.”
“…the ability to be present and proactive across the
whole system is really rewarding…”
Jodie Finney MCSP RRT
Respiratory Integration Lead, Gloucestershire ICS

#glosSTP
39

New Ways of Working (2) : Integration – a cultural
change
Explicit collaborative working across the ICS

2019 ICS workforce planning process

Page 56

Workforce planning
•
Gloucestershire benefits from being coterminous and
having a history of relatively close working across the health
community
•
Has not widely invested in capacity and capability for
workforce planning in the past - What it does have is good
•
Co-ordinated strategic workforce planning process for the
first time
•
One Gloucestershire fully represented at regional events.
The only health community to do this

“These are challenging times within the NHS both nationally
and locally in terms of staff shortages and it has been
recognised within the NHS the crucial role ICS’s will play in
meeting these challenges. I am extremely proud of our
partnership ethos within our ICS. When I attend conferences,
networking events linked with workforce it becomes evident
how strong our working relationship is as an ICS compared to
others. I have every confidence that together we will succeed,
through collaborative working, ingenuity and respect for each
other.”
Shirley Daniels, HR Business Partner – Gloucestershire Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust

#glosSTP
40

New Ways of Working (3) : Integration – a cultural
change

Page 57

Staff Health and Wellbeing

Diversity

Work across the ICS is supported by a health and
wellbeing sub-group, this enables collaboration
and partnership working across the ICS. This
group aims to align activity and develop a One
Gloucestershire approach to health and wellbeing
including:
• Make and implement recommendations to
support employees to improve and maintain
their health & wellbeing
• Ensure equal focus to mental health and
wellbeing

ICS employers are committed to ensuring that everyone
regardless of their ability or disability have the same
opportunities to access meaningful occupation.
Employers are either “Disability Confident” Employers or
Leaders .
Current services/projects
•
Forwards – working across children’s and adult
service Forwards aims to build the employment
aspirations of disabled people of all ages.
•
Gloucestershire Going the Extra Mile(GEM) Project
helps people who are furthest away from the labour
market with multiple and complex barriers to
employment including; disabled people, care
leavers, young people who are NEET, homeless,
drugs and/or alcohol dependency, ex-offenders,
people aged over 50 and people from B&ME
communities.
•
AIM (Assisted Internship Model)
•
GIS Healthcare Traineeships
•
Future Me - Preparing for Adulthood
•
NHS Pledge: The NHS is Gloucestershire’s biggest
employer and in 2015 there was a public
commitment to increase the number of people with
learning disabilities employed by the NHS.

•
•

•
•

GCC workplace HWB strategy and implementation
plan
Workplace Wellbeing Charter – in the process of
developing a local workplace HWB accreditation
scheme (public health/CCG) to provide a more
sustainable options for SMEs.
PHE Prevention Concordat – Gloucestershire
approach. Gloucestershire Health & Wellbeing
(GloW) webpage www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/glow
Time to Change – currently progressing work via a
GlosTalk campaign.

https://www.nhsemployers.org/diversenhspledge

#glosSTP
41

New Ways of Working (5):
GCC Adult Social Care

Page 58

#glosSTP
42

New Ways of Working (6):
GCC Adult Social Care
What’s happened so far in pilot sites?
•
•
•
Page 59

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Reduced the level of bureaucracy
Changed our recording tool to conversation
model. Three specific conversation tools, not an
18 page assessment with pick lists
Engaged with our local communities. Staff have
spent time in their community finding out about
local resources
Supported individuals to remain independent and
not rely on formal services – only when needed
Staff are more confident and skilled at making
defensible decisions. There is a lot more peer
support and discussion
Apply ‘proportionality’ principle to avoid people
going through assessments unnecessarily
Been creative in our solutions
Enabled conversations to happen that understand
what people want to achieve and focus on
capabilities
Worked with our partners to achieve the best
possible outcomes for people
Increased the time we spend with people
Reduce waiting times for people and offered a
more responsive service

Phase 1 outcomes and learning
•

316 people were supported across all three
innovation sites over 13 weeks

•

As of week 13, 154 conversations were
completed

•

Breakdown of work:
Conversation 1 (52%)
Conversation 2 (31%)
Conversation 3 (13%)

•

100% of people who provided feedback rated
the experience as positive

•

72% of people who entered the site without a
formal package of care left without a package of
care

•

Low re-referral rate of 5% (equating to 16
people), compared with 27.3% in business as
usual

#glosSTP
43

New Ways of Working (6):
GCC Adult Social Care
Time Frame
•
•
•
Page 60

•
•

Acute hospitals will be developing a plan
from May 2019
We anticipate working with Stroud and
Cotswolds from July 2019
The project team is currently supporting the
localities to design their Innovations sites,
based on previous learning for a July 1st start
for 13 weeks
Tewkesbury and Gloucester will start their
Phase 1 in November.
The aim is everyone working on this model
from February 2020

New Roles – Care Navigator
•

Awaiting wording on role and update on
level of diversion away from qualified
social work staff and more rapid response
in acute settings

#glosSTP
44

Leadership
ICS Wide Leadership programme:
•

•
Page 61

•

2018 – co-produced and delivered an ICS
system leadership development
programme and on line toolkit for 48
leaders (2 cohorts of 24 leaders) from
GCS, GHFT, CCG and 2gether
Aimed at leaders working at a strategic
level, informing and developing service
improvement across the system
Programme was built on 5 elements of
collaborative leadership and reflects NHS
leadership academy guidance and leading
approaches to system leadership

•

•

Multi-agency / multi-disciplinary cohorts:
all NHS organisations; Gloucestershire
County Council; GCC external nominations
(Care Homes etc); Police; Public Health;
Southwest Ambulance NHS Trust
Each cohort with a different focus: Urgent
Care; Dementia & Frailty; CVD & Diabetes;
Respiratory & End of Life Care

Currently up to Cohort 6 with more cohorts
(92 attendees) planned for this year.
Alumni from previous cohorts supporting ICS
wide projects and initiatives.
“Excellent programme, elements, toolkits
and networking. Time to develop
relationships and trust”
“We knew everything was on the Toolkit,
and would recommend to other
colleagues across the STP/ICS”

#glosSTP
45

Leadership (2)
Adult Social Care Leadership & Management Development Pathway
Available to providers in the external ASC sector and to GCC managers of CQC registered services, this
pathway supports the development of future and current managers.

Page 62

Every adult care service
registered with the Care
Quality Commission (CQC)
regulator must have its own
registered manager. They
have overall statutory
responsibility for making sure
care standards are met and
that there are enough skilled
staff recruited and trained to
deliver quality care. In
Gloucestershire there are 356
CQC Regulated
establishments.

#glosSTP
46

Page 63

NHS – Long Term Plan

#glosSTP
47

One Gloucestershire – Long Term Plan (1)
The Long Term Plan indicates further workforce changes will be required and the Implementation plan
when it is published later in 2019 will also inform the ICS’ future plans, particularly around the specific
requirements for Cancer, Mental Health and Stroke, though these are already areas of provider focus.

Page 64

Non-Medical supply:
•
The indicated increases of placements for non-medical under-graduates are welcomed, but this will require the ICS
provider members to work to increasing capacity for students. Providers have responded positively in their
commitment to achieving increases as required. Work has commenced on identifying potential methodologies for
the expected 25% increase.
•
The Workforce groups will need to continue to work closely with HEE and the HEIs regarding quality of training
outputs, particularly if there is to be guaranteed employment.
•
Demand for continued and increased supply particularly for nurses will continue – driven by current vacancy levels
and potential retirements and particularly as people live longer with more acute/chronic conditions. All ICS
providers have implemented a range of flexible working arrangements and retention schemes in order to maximise
supply/retention.
•
A greater focus on effective use of apprenticeship levy will be required in 2019/10 – to support “all entry level jobs
to be offered as apprenticeships”. Plans have been developed to create an apprenticeship hub for the county,
funding will need to be agreed before this can be implemented. The hub will enable apprenticeships to be
considered across the ICS, supporting both health and care in an integrated way and supporting the delivery of the
long term plan.
•
The ICS has well developed plans for the use of Nursing Associates.
•
ICS providers have been working closely with HEIs, ensuring that all programmes are aligned to the new nursing
standards.

#glosSTP
48

One Gloucestershire – Long Term Plan (2)

Page 65

Medical Supply
•
The impact of increasing undergraduate places when it feeds into increases in post-graduate placements will be
welcomed, as will the focus on skills supporting co-morbidities and the ageing population.
•
ICS providers are developing expanded and new roles in support of medical capacity through the implementation
of new roles supporting the skill mix such as Physician’s associates; Advanced Clinical Practitioners (ACPs) and
senior nurse roles; plus the consideration of the Associate Specialist role (scoping trial underway).
Current Staff
•
HEE funding available to the ICS is prioritised against our transformation agenda – clinical programmes; patient led
care; parity of esteem (physical skills in MH and MH skills in the wider community and targeted clinical teams such
as MIUs). A significant proportion in the last 3 years has supported the development of ACPs and upskilling current
workforce.
•
Expected increases in workforce development funds if deployed locally will require a robust procurement solution
for the ICS.
•
Leadership and the wider use of QSIR across the ICS has also been a target for focused development and delivery.
•
Digital skills will become more of a focus for the upskilling of current staff to enable most effective use of new
digital technology.

#glosSTP
49

Page 66

ICS – Key Deliverables (2018/19 to 2020/21)

#glosSTP
50

Workforce and OD – Gloucestershire Workforce Action Board Priorities:
• Support the delivery of One Gloucestershire ICS through:
o
o
o

shared culture – proud to be One Gloucestershire
exemplary leadership – all levels across the system
Improvement culture embedded across the system through the Improvement Academy

o
o

joint approach to recruitment: promoting Gloucestershire as a great place to live and work
county approach to minimise agency spend

• Oversee the development of shared information and common systems such as:

Page 67

• Develop a Workforce and OD Strategy for One Gloucestershire building on and aligning individual organisation’s Workforce
and OD strategies to support ICS goals
• Working with the Clinical pathways, develop a 5 year strategic workforce plan for the ICS footprint - identifying priority
areas for workforce transformation
• Work towards becoming a leader in education innovation, ensuring that One Gloucestershire can reap early benefits of
national and local developments through having effective education systems and partnerships with education providers
across the system.
• Specific support to Urgent Care workstream – providing workforce planning and modelling to create workforce plan
supporting planned transformation.
• Ensure effective interface between the enabling workforce workstreams and the clinical workstreams – in particular
Primary Care and Urgent Care.

Education and Learning

• Development opportunities for careers of choice, supported by a central platform for education promotion, provision and
networking
• Shared Career Pathways that attract, develop and retain the workforce required in Health and Social Care
• Coproduction of new ways of working, new roles and new recruits into the workforce in partnership with our education
and academic colleagues
• Increased numbers and range of apprenticeships with streamlined processes for rotation and procurement
• Improved workforce ‘mobility’ across One Gloucestershire, with streamlined Education and Learning programmes
• Improved experience for Health and Social Care colleagues, to feel engaged, supported, invested in and valued
• One Gloucestershire Education and Learning provision of the right skills for the right people to deliver the ICS clinical
priorities
• Expand our research and development expertise and further enable innovations in our services
• An effective education system for workforce supply with increased integration and collaboration across our health and
social care system

#glosSTP
51

Recruitment and Retention

Page 68

• Between organisations Identify common:
o recruitment policy
o recruitment processes and working practice
o recruitment systems
o culture and values between organisations
• Identify benefits and plan their realisation to assure value-for-money and quality services that improve on current
ways of working
• Identify and share all ‘good ideas’ for retaining staff, including but not limited to:
o Flexible working opportunities
o Understanding generational differences and opportunities
o Channelling opportunities and benefits from other work streams into our propositions, materials and ways
of working
o Mapping of transferable skills across career pathways to maximise opportunities
o Career pathways and flexible career development options
• Determine initiatives that will support reduction in overall agency usage and jointly utilise a tiered approach to their
use
• Increase numbers of bank workers and plan countywide recruitment and communication

Integrated Workforce Planning
• 5 year ICS workforce plan – development including:
o Primary and Community baseline
o Provider profiles
• Workforce planning and development to support clusters and ICS clinical programmes
• Modelling and use of new roles in integrated workforce
• Develop workforce planning capacity across ICS

#glosSTP
52

Health & Wellbeing
• Develop a One Gloucestershire approach to employee health & wellbeing
• Make and implement recommendations to support employees to improve and maintain their health & wellbeing
• Ensure equal focus to mental health and wellbeing

Better Conversations
•
•

Page 69

•

Develop a coherent and sustainable strategic approach to building coaching skills for health and wellbeing across the ICS
workforce to enable and embed effective practice in person-centred approaches to helping people to help themselves
through:
Using a ‘test and learn’ approach to delivering and evaluating training in coaching skills and supporting OD activities during
2018/19
Developing best practice guidance and tools for partner organisations to help them to build coaching skills capacity and
effectively embed this way of working across the ICS

Leadership, Values & Behaviour
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Multi-agency sub-group to meet regularly to oversee the development, delivery and evaluation of the Leadership &
Management Pathway
Course for aspiring Managers to be scoped and commissioned as a priority
Course for Transformational Leadership to be scoped and commissioned
Continue to implement, evaluate and develop the New Managers Induction programme and the RMN
Improve opportunities for non-registered and aspiring managers to feel engaged, supported and invested in (Improve
continuous professional development (CPD) opportunities for Managers to look beyond their current role
An effective Mentoring and Coaching system to increase collaboration across our social care sector
Consideration of whether a consultancy component would add value
Adult Social care provider sector work (Under Proud to Care)

#glosSTP
53

Page 70

NHS – Interim People Plan

#glosSTP
54

Timeline (1)
The NHS Interim People Plan provides a number of actions which will require local activity and
implementation – these actions are listed below:

Page 71

#glosSTP
55

Timeline (2)

Page 72

#glosSTP
56

A summary of the adult social
care sector and workforce
in Gloucestershire
2017/18
Skills for Care, as the leading source of adult social care workforce
intelligence, has created this summary because good quality information
about the workforce is vital to help inform planning and decision making.
This will contribute to the delivery of high quality social care services and improve
outcomes for people who use these services, both now and in the future.
The information within this summary has been produced by Skills for Care using the National
Minimum Data Set for Social Care (NMDS-SC). We use the data collected by the NMDS-SC to
create workforce models that, in turn, allow for estimates of the whole adult social care workforce
and its characteristics to be produced. The * notation throughout refers to use of raw data from
the NMDS-SC.
Size and structure of the
workforce in this area
In 2017 the adult social
care sector in England had an estimated
21,200 organisations, 41,000 care providing
locations and 1.6 million jobs. In
Gloucestershire there were an estimated
18,500 jobs in adult social care split between
local authorities (6%), independent sector
providers (87%) and jobs for direct payment
recipients (7%). As at September 2018
Gloucestershire contained 361 CQC
regulated services; of these, 242 were
residential and 119 were non-residential
services.
The adult social care workforce is growing.
Across England it has increased
by 21% since 2009, and in the
South West region, by 6% since
21%
2012.
If the workforce grows
proportionally to the projected number of
people aged 65 and over then the number of
adult social care jobs in the South West
region will increase by 43% (from 174,000 to
249,000 jobs) by 2035. Skills for Care can
produce workforce forecasts at a local level,
for more information please see:
www.skillsforcare.org.uk/
wiandlocalauthorities

The adult social care
sector was estimated to
contribute £38.5 billion per
annum to the English economy and in the
South West region, this contribution was
estimated to be between £4.2 and £4.6
billion1. Almost half of this is estimated to be
the wage bill of the sector. Skills for Care can
produce economic contribution estimates at
a local level, for more information please
see: www.skillsforcare.org.uk/
economiccontribution
Recruitment and retention
Skills for Care estimates that the turnover
rate in Gloucestershire was 34.0%, which
was similar to the region average of 33.1%
and higher than England at 30.70%. Not all
turnover results in workers leaving the
sector, around two thirds (64%) of those
recruited came from within the adult social
care sector, therefore although employers
need to recruit to these posts, the sector
retains their skills and experience.
Adult social care has an experienced ‘core’
of workers. Workers in Gloucestershire had
on average 8.3 years of experience in the
sector and 69% of the workforce had been
working in the sector for at least three years.

The Economic Value of the Adult Social Care sector – England, June 2018
https://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/economicvalueengland
1

Page 73

Skills for Care estimates that in
Gloucestershire, 7.8% of roles in adult social
care were vacant, this equates to around
1,400 vacancies at any one time. This
vacancy rate was similar to the region
average, at 7.5% and similar to England at
8.0%.
Using both workforce intelligence evidence
and our links with employers and
stakeholders across England, we know that
recruitment and retention is one of the
largest issues faced by employers. We have
many resources and tools available to
employers to help with recruitment and
retention issues. For more information please
visit: www.skillsforcare.org.uk/recruitmentretention
Staffing overview
The estimated number of adult social care
jobs in the Gloucestershire area was 18,500
including 1,500 managerial roles, 750
regulated professionals, 14,000 direct care
(including 10,500 care workers), and 2,500
other-non-care proving roles.
The average number of sickness days taken
in the last year in Gloucestershire was 5.8
(5.2 in South West and 5.1 across England).
With an estimated directly employed
workforce of 16,500 this would mean
employers in Gloucestershire lost
approximately 95,000 days to sickness in
2017/18.
Less than a fifth (16%) of the workforce in
Gloucestershire were on zero-hours
contracts.
Chart 1. Proportion of workers on zero
hours contracts by area
England
South West
Gloucestershire

25%
19%
16%

Demographics
The majority (80%) of the workforce
in Gloucestershire were female and
the average age was 42.3 years old.
Those aged 24 and under made up 11% of
the workforce and those aged over 55
represented 23%. Given this age profile
approximately 4,200 people will be reaching
retirement age in the next 10 years.
Nationality varied by region, in England 83%
of the workforce were British, while in South
West this was 85%. An estimated 80% of the
workforce in Gloucestershire had a British
nationality, 12% had an EU nationality and
8% had a non-EU nationality, therefore there
was a higher reliance on EU than non-EU
workers.
Pay
Table 1 shows the full-time equivalent annual
or hourly pay rate of selected job roles in
Gloucestershire (area), South West (region)
and England. These data were captured for
the local authority sector as at September
2017 and the independent sector as at
March 2018. At the time of analysis the
National Living Wage was £7.50.
Skills for Care can produce national living
wage tools and analysis at a local level, for
more information please see:
www.skillsforcare.org.uk/NLW
Table 1. Average pay rate of selected job
roles by area
England Region
Full-time equivalent annual pay
Social Worker*
£34,900
£32,800
Registered nurse** £29,400
£29,200
Hourly pay
National Living
Wage
£7.50
£7.50
Senior care worker
£8.96
£8.99
Care worker
£8.19
£8.15
Support and
outreach
£9.37
£8.98

Area
£29,900
£29,600

*Statutory

sector social workers only.
**Independent sector registered nurses only.

Approximately half (52%) of the workforce
worked on a full-time basis, 34% were parttime and the remaining 14% had no fixed
hours.

Please note that pay varies by sector, with
local authority pay generally being higher
than independent sector pay.

Page 74

£7.50
£9.31
£8.30
£9.03

Qualifications, training and skills
Skills for Care believes that
everyone working in adult social
care should be able to take part in
learning and development so they
can carry out their role effectively, this will
help to develop the right skills and
knowledge so they can provide high quality
care and support.
Skills for Care estimates show that 54% of
the workforce in Gloucestershire hold a
relevant adult social care qualification (53%
in South West and 53% in England).
Of those workers without a relevant adult
social care qualification recorded, 52% had
three or more years of experience in the
adult social care sector, 86% had completed
or were in the process of an induction and
38% had engaged with the Care Certificate.
Further information and relevant
resources
Workforce estimates were based on
independent sector information derived from
the NMDS-SC as at March 2018 and local
authority information as at September 2017.
For more detail about the methodology used
to create these estimates please see:
www.skillsforcare.org.uk/workforceestimates

Skills for Care provides outstanding
workforce intelligence relied upon by the
sector to make decisions about adult social
care planning and service delivery. To read
more publications, including the State of the
adult social care sector and workforce in the
South West region and short briefings
covering topics such as pay trends, social
workers, registered nurses in the adult social
care sector and the nationality of the
workforce please see:
www.skillsforcare.org.uk/WIpublications
For a bespoke analysis of
workforce information at a local
level or to answer any specific
questions you have about the
adult social care workforce
please contact: analysis@skillsforcare.org.uk
Example topics include; a more detailed
workforce report about adult social care
within this area, provision of care for people
with learning disabilities or other types of
people who use social care services, and
much more.
To be kept up to date with workforce
intelligence news please join our mailing list
by registering with Skills for Care and
selecting “workforce intelligence
publications”. You can also follow us on
twitter @SfC_NMDS_SC

For more information please email analysis@skillsforcare.org.uk

Skills for Care, West Gate
6 Grace Street, Leeds, LS1 2RP

T: 0113 245 1716
skillsforcare.org.uk
Page 75

This page is intentionally left blank

